
1 of 2 

 

EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
May 26, 2016 

 
Call to Order 
1. Roll Call ___ Roberts___Longanecker ___Crooks ___Troutner ___ Brown ___ Crist 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Agenda Approval 
5. Approve City Council Meeting Minutes May 12, 2016 
6. Approve Ordinance No. 1016 Pertaining To Kansas Gas Service, A Division Of One Gas, Inc., 

Its Successors, And Assigns, Extending The Term Of The Current Natural Gas Franchise 
Current Due To Expire On June 8, 2016 

 
Regular Agenda 
7. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items not on 

the agenda and that are under the jurisdiction of the City Council may do so when called 
upon by the Mayor. Comments on personnel matters and matters pending before court or 
other outside tribunals are not permitted. Please notify the City Clerk before the meeting if 
you wish to speak. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. Any presentation is for 
informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 
 

8. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 
have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 

 
Business Requiring Action 
9. CONSIDER PURCHASE OF MATERIALS FROM SCHULTE SUPPLY, INC. FOR 

AUTOMATED METER READING PROJECT 
 

Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE INPUT FROM THE PUBLIC ON THE POSSIBLE USE 

OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) FUNDS IN RESOLVING 
LOCAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING NEEDS IN THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON  

 
11. CONSIDER SUBMITTAL OF APPLICATION TO JOHNSON COUNTY FOR NELSON 

STREET WATERLINE PROJECT FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
(CDBG) FUNDING FOR 2017 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
  



2 of 2 

 

12. CONSIDER AN AGREEMENT WITH BURNS & MCDONNELL/CAS CONSTRUCTION 
ON THE BASIS OF A STIPULATED PRICE 

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
13. Report by the City Administrator 
 
14. Report by the Mayor 

 
15. Future Meeting/Event Reminders: 

 May 28th 8:00 PM – Downtown Summer Movie Night – The Good Dinosaur 

 June 9th 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 
 June 14th 7:00 PM – Planning Commission 
 June 15th Noon – Senior Lunch 
 June 17-18 – Frontier Days  
 June 23rd 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 
 June 30th – City Council Budget Work Session 

 
16. CONSIDER RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 

(b) (2) FOR CONSULTATION WITH AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN THE 
ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR  

 
Motion: ____________ Second: ___________ Vote: ____________ 

 
RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
 

17. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ______ 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
May 12, 2016 

Page 1 

City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Regular Session 

May 12, 2016 
 
 A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson, Edgerton, 

Kansas on May 12, 2016.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor Roberts presiding, and 
City Clerk Janeice L. Rawles recording. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

Charlie Troutner  present 
Clay Longanecker  present 
Darius Crist  present 
Jody Brown  present 
Cindy Crooks  present 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance:  City Administrator Beth Linn 
 Community Development Director Kenny Cook 
    City Attorney Patrick Reavey 
    Public Works Superintendent Trey Whitaker 
    Johnson County Sheriff Dept. Representative  
                                  

2.  WELCOME  
         
3.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA  
4.  The agenda for May 12, 2016 was considered. 
5. City Council Meeting Minutes April 28, 2016 were considered. 
6. Resolution No. 05-12-16A Authorizing the Closure of Certain Public Streets During the Edgerton 

Frontier Days Festival was considered. 
7. Resolution No. 05-12-16B Approving the Mayoral Appointments for the City Treasurer, City 

Prosecutor, Municipal Judge, and City Attorney for the City of Edgerton, Kansas was considered. 
8. Application FP 2015-03, Final Plat, CY Edgerton was considered. 
 
 Mayor Roberts removed item number six (Resolution No. 05-12-16A Authorizing the closure of 

certain public streets during the Edgerton Frontier Days Festival) from the agenda for more 
discussion. 

 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Troutner, to approve the consent agenda with noted exceptions. 
  
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Item number six from the Consent Agenda which addresses the Approval of Resolution No. 05-12-

16A authorizing the closure of certain public streets during the Edgerton Frontier Days Festival was 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
May 12, 2016 

Page 2 
discussed.  Mayor Roberts introduced Glyn Powers, President of Frontier Days Association.  Mr. 
Powers presented information about this year’s event including bands such as Joe Diffie, Phil Vandel 
and Toby’s Amusement for the carnival. 

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Crist, to approve Resolution No 05-12-16A authorizing the 

closure of certain public streets during the Edgerton Frontier Days Festival. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 In the past years, the City of Edgerton has donated $15,000 to the Edgerton Frontier Days 

Association.  This year the Frontier Days Association is requesting an additional $3,000 for a total of 
$18,000.  Additional dollars are needed to bring Toby’s Amusement to the festival. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Longanecker, to approve the request for an additional three 

thousand dollars, to come from the unencumbered fund balance from this year’s budget. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Mr. Powers asked for permission to use the house and garage at 305 E. Nelson to store items and 

golf carts.  The old maintenance shop will be used for the beer garden for the event.  The beer 
garden is being run by an individual group, Saints Pub. 

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to allow Frontier Days Association the use of the house 

and garage at 305 E Nelson during the Frontier Days Association Event of June 16 thru June 18, 
2016. 

 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
9.    PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 None 
  
10. DECLARATION 
 None 
 
 BUSINESS REQUIRING ACTION 
 
  MASTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GEORGE BUTLER ASSOCIATES 
11.  A MASTER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH GEORGE 

BUTLER ASSOCIATES, INC. (GBA) FOR PLANNING AND ENGINEERING SERVICES WAS CONSIDERED 
 
 Beth Linn, City Administrator, introduced Kenny Cook, Community Development Director, and Brad 

Burton, George Butler Associates, who were present to explain the agreement between the City of 
Edgerton and GBA.   George Butler Associates will be used to provide planning and engineering 
services on an on-call basis.  The specific services that staff has discussed with GBA include: Planning 
Reviews (Plats, Site Plan), Regulation Updates, Building Code Review, and Building Inspection.  Mr. 
Burton advised council that he is looking forward to working with the City of Edgerton. 

 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
May 12, 2016 

Page 3 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to approve the Agreement with George Butler Associates, 

Inc. with the changes being made by City Attorney Patrick Reavey. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
  
  RESOLUTION NO 05-12-16C – FIVE YEAR STREET PROGRAM  
12. RESOLUTION NO 05-12-16C APPROVING A FIVE YEAR CITY/COUNTY STREET IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM WAS CONSIDERED. 
 
 Beth Linn, City Administrator, introduced Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent, to discuss 

the five year city/county street improvement program.  The City of Edgerton has submitted three 
projects to be considered in the CARS 2017-2021 programs.  As part of the submittal, each city is 
required to submit a resolution of support approved by the Governing Body.   

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to approve Resolution No 05-12-16C approving a five 

year city/county street improvement program. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0 
 
13. REPORT BY THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 The City of Edgerton Parks & Recreation Department held an open house on Monday, May 9th at 

the Edgerton Elementary School to receive citizen input about the Parks Master Plan.  There will be 
more meetings about the Parks Master Plan and the community is invited to attend. 

 
 Kenny Cook, Community Development Director, updated the Mayor and City Council about the 

West 8th Street Sidewalk project.  
 
 The Johnson County Library location in Edgerton has requested to change the location of the book 

drop.  The consensus of the Mayor and City Council is to place the book drop on the west side of 
the building.  

 
 Reminder that a City Council work session will be held on the 19th of May at 7:00 pm.  
 
14. REPORT BY THE MAYOR 
 
 Mayor Roberts had nothing to report, however Council member Troutner requested an 

opportunity to speak.  Mr. Troutner spoke about bee keeping. He requested a discussion be placed 
on a future council agenda due to the public safety concern.   

 
15. FUTURE MEETING/EVENT REMINDERS: 

 May 14th 9:00 AM – Manor Park Ribbon Cutting 

 May 14th – 2:00 PM – 5:00 PM – Summer Kickoff Party at Downtown Green space 

 May 18th – Noon – Senior Lunch 

 May 19th – City Council Work Session – 2017 Budget – 7:00 pm 

 May 26th – 7:00 PM – City Council Meeting 

 May 30th Memorial Day – City Offices CLOSED 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
May 12, 2016 

Page 4 
 
  EXECUTIVE SESSION- ATTORNEY CLIENT RELATIONSHIP 
16. RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 (b) (2) FOR CONSULTATION WITH 

AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE CITY 
ATTORNEY AND CITY ADMINISTRATOR WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Longanecker, to recess into executive session for ten minutes 

pursuant to K.S.A. 75-4319 (b)(2) for consultation with an attorney deemed privileged in the 
attorney-client relationship to include city attorney and city administrator. 

 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting recessed at 8:00 pm. 
 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Troutner, to reconvene regular meeting. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 8:11 PM. 
 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Crist, to return to executive session under the previous criteria. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting recessed at 8:13 PM. 
 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to reconvene regular meeting. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 8:18 PM, with no action taken. 
 
  EXECUTIVE SESSION – ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY 
17. RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 (b)(6) FOR PRELIMINARY 

DISCUSSION RELATED TO ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR WAS CONSIDERED. 

 
 Motion by Longanecker, seconded by Brown, to recess into executive session for fifteen minutes 

pursuant to K.S.A. 75-4319 (b)(6) for preliminary discussion related to acquisition of real property 
to include City Attorney and City Administrator. 

 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting recessed at 8:20 PM. 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Brown, to reconvene regular meeting, no action taken. 
 



City of Edgerton Regular Session Minutes 
May 12, 2016 

Page 5 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 8:35 PM with no action taken. 
 
  EXECUTIVE SESSION- PERSONNEL MATTERS OF NONELECTED PERSONNEL   
18.   RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-4319 (b)(1) PERSONNEL MATTERS OF 

NONELECTED PERSONNEL WAS CONSIDERED. 
 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Crist, to recess into executive session for twenty minutes pursuant 

to K.S.A. 75-4319 (b)(1) personnel matters of nonelected personnel. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting recessed at 8:38 PM. 
 
 Motion by Brown, seconded by Longanecker, to reconvene regular session. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting reconvened at 9:00 PM. 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Longanecker, that after review of City Administrator’s current wage 

and review of other public and private wage data it is the recommendation of the council to adjust 
City Administrator’s annual wage to $134,000. 

 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 There were several positive comments made by Mayor and Council after the motion was approved. 
 
19.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Motion by Crooks, seconded by Crist, to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 Motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
 Meeting adjourned at 9:10 pm. 
 
 ______________________________________________ 
           Janeice L. Rawles, CMC 
 
 
Approved by the Governing Body on ________________________________ 
 
  



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Ordinance No. 1016 Pertaining To Kansas Gas Service, A Division Of One Gas, 
Inc., Its Successors, And Assigns, Extending The Term Of The Current Natural Gas Franchise Current Due 
To Expire On June 8, 2016 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

Background/Description of Item: The City of Edgerton has an active franchise agreement with Kansas 
Gas Service, a division of One Gas, Inc. This franchise is due to expire on June 8, 2016.  
 
City Attorney has been working with representative of Kansas Gas regarding the proposed language to 
extend the franchise agreement. That extension will not be ready for consideration by City Council before 
the May 26, 2016 meeting. Therefore, staff and Kansas Gas recommend adopting Ordinance No. 1016 to 
extend the current franchise and allow time for completion of new language. Ordinance No. 1016 would 
extend the current franchise until September 20, 2016.  
 
City Attorney has reviewed and approved Ordinance No. 1016 
 
Enclosure:  Draft Ordinance No. 1016 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation: Approve Ordinance No. 1016 Pertaining To Kansas Gas Service, A Division Of One 
Gas, Inc., Its Successors, And Assigns, Extending The Term Of The Current Natural Gas Franchise Current 

Due To Expire On June 8, 2016 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator  
Date: May 23, 2016 



ORDINANCE NO. 1016 
 
AN ORDINANCE PERTAINING TO KANSAS GAS SERVICE, A DIVISION OF ONE 
GAS, INC., ITS SUCCESSORS, AND ASSIGNS, EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE 
CURRENT NATURAL GAS FRANCHISE CURRENT DUE TO EXPIRE ON JUNE 8, 
2016. 
 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to extend said Franchise through September 
30, 2016 in order to provide the parties additional time to process a new Franchise. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 
KANSAS: 
 

SECTION 1. Extension. 
The existing Franchise between the parties as set forth in Ordinance 814, shall be 
extended until September 30, 2016. 
 

SECTION 2. Conditions of Franchise. 
That in consideration of the benefits to be derived by the City and its inhabitants, the 
benefits to be derived by Grantee, and the desire of the parties to have additional time 
in which to discuss possible modifications to the Franchise between the parties, the 
existing Franchise is hereby reaffirmed and extended until September 30, 2016, at which 
time said Franchise shall expire. 
 

SECTION 3. Payment of Costs. 
Kansas Gas Service, a Division of ONE Gas, Inc. will pay all expenses of the City in 
connection with this ordinance, including, but not limited to, the costs and fees for the 
publication of this Ordinance. 
 
PASSED by the Governing Body this 26th day of May, 2016. 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor, this 26th day of May, 2016. 
 
 
[SEAL] 
        _______________________ 

Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

  



ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

__________________________________ 

Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney  

 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Purchase of Materials from Schulte Supply, Inc. for Automated Meter 

Reading Project 

 

Department:  Utilities 

 

Background/Description of Item: On November 12, 2015, Edgerton City Council approved 
Schulte Supply, Inc. (vendor) and Neptune (brand) as the preferred vendor/brand for the 
automated meter reading project. Additionally, on February 25, 2016, City Council approved 
Resolution No. 02-25-26b authorizing the completion of an application to the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment (KDHE) regarding a loan from the Kansas Public Water 
Supply Loan Fund.  
 
KDHE has provided preliminary approval of the project and approved the City of Edgerton to 
purchase the meters as shown in the attached documents and be reimbursed for the purchase 
with future loan process. Once ordered, the meters will arrive in approximately 3-4 weeks.  
 
Based on feedback from KDHE, staff anticipates receiving final loan documents for City Council 
to consider in June 2016.  
 
Enclosed in packet is information from the selection of Schulte/Neptune from the City Council 
meeting regarding the meters, etc for reference.  
 
Enclosure: Neptune Proposal  
                Schulte Supply, Inc. Contract Documents required by KDHE  
                 November 12, 2015 City Council documents regarding Neptune 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:  Approve Purchase of Materials from Schulte Supply, Inc. for Automated 
Meter Reading Project in the amount of $205,328.10 

 

Funding Source: Future loan funds from Kansas Department of Health and Environment for 
State Revolving Loan Funds 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: May 23, 2016 



































AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Selection of a Vendor for Automated Meter Reading Project and 

Authorization to Submit to Kansas Department of Health and Environment as Preferred Project 

 

Department:  Utilities 

 

Background/Description of Item: As part of the adoption of the 2016 Annual Budget, the 
Edgerton City Council allocated $125,000 over three years for the replacement and upgrade of 
the existing water meter system to an automated meter reading (AMR) system and system-
wide replacement of meters. 
 
Staff formed a Selection Committee composed of the Utility Superintendent, Account Clerk and 
Accountant to review various vendors and the details of each system. These employees 
interact with the water meter system and/or utility billing system on nearly a daily basis and 
are very familiar with the challenges of the existing system. Together, the committee 
determined the criteria important in selecting a new vendor. Those criteria included:  

 Scalability – Can the system be easily added to in the future as new customers are 
added?   

 Ability to interact with existing utility billing/financial software – Can the system 
interact with CIC and be uploaded into the current software?  

 Ability to upgrade in the future – Can the system be upgraded in the future to take 
advantage of advances in technology?  

 Customer Services and IT support – What level of support is offered and at what 
cost? What investment in IT is needed to operate and/or maintain the system?  

 Cost of system compared to allocated budget – Is the system within/near the 
allocated budget amount?  

 
While attending the Kansas Rural Water Association Conference in Spring 2014, the Utility 
Superintendent interacted with three local distributors of water meter systems [Mueller, 
Neptune and Sensus]. These vendors are established in Kansas and would be considered local 
distributors for the purposes of maintenance concerns or replacement parts. The Utility 
Superintendent was able to view their products available and request a generic quote for 700 
⅝ x ¾ meters with radio read option and fixed base option. These quotes gave the committee 
the information needed to screen vendors on the criteria of general cost versus available 
budget. Sensus was removed based on the magnitude of cost versus available budget.   
 
In 2015, the remaining two vendors [Mueller and Neptune] were invited to provide a 
demonstration of their systems for the selection committee. Additionally, after initial 
demonstrations, the City was approached by Metron-Verizon requesting consideration of their 
infrastructure/software. The committee did allow a demonstration by Metron-Verizon. 
Following those demonstrations and additional discussion/information provided from the 
vendors, the selection committee used the criteria previously mentioned to unanimously select 
Neptune as the preferred vendor to present to the City Administrator.  



SYSTEM RECOMMENDATION 
The Selection Committee is recommending implementation of an Advanced Metering 
Infrastructure (AMI) system. A summary description of the recommended AMI system from 
Neptune is below.  
 

R900® Fixed Network AMI 
 
Neptune’s R900® System offers utilities the ability to build onto existing mobile 
infrastructure to achieve fixed network functionality without stranding assets – 
providing accurate daily reads, daily flags for leak, tamper, and reverse flow detection, 
consumption data to assist conservation programs, and final daily reads that eliminate 
truck rolls for off-cycle automatic meter reading. 
 

 Actionable Data 
 Fully automated daily meter reading  

 Improved meter reading safety and less turnover  
 15-minute interval flags for leak, tamper, and reverse flow detection  
 Conservation program support – hourly, daily, and/or monthly consumption data 

available to end users  

 Address high water bill complaints with historical consumption graphs (daily or 
monthly)  

 Final daily reads for move-ins/move-outs that eliminate truck rolls for off-cycle 
reads  

 N_SIGHT™ R900® host software fully supports contingency reads through 
handheld/mobile devices as well as route splitting and grouping  

 
BUDGET 
Neptune has provided a proposal for the system described above at approximately $205,000. 
A copy of that proposal is enclosed. While this cost is higher than the budget cost at $125,000 
the system is significantly more sophisticated. The system quoted is a fully automated daily 
meter reading system. The system originally budget was a “drive-by” system. The extra 
investment in upgrading the system provides significant value for the city and the residents to 
include warnings for possible leaks or tampering; the ability to review historical consumption 
graphs to address high water bill concerns, data to assist in conservation programs, etc. Staff 
believes investment in these increased features of the system will allow both the city and its 
residents to be more aware of their water consumption and better resolve concerns in the 
future. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION 
The City of Edgerton has allocated funding in three consecutive years (2015-2017) for the 
water metering system to be replaced citywide. This approach was selected at the time for the 
following reasons: 

1) At least one vendor offered a package deal to assist in payment for cost in first year 
to include a portion of meters and software with just meters in the following two 



years 
2) Budget – Staff was unsure of available outside funding available for this type of 

project; therefore, proposed a pay-as-you go method  
3) Installation – Could cause work load concern for current staff 
4) Replacement – Concern that if all meters installed same time that all will be ready 

for replacement at same time 
 
However after the Selection Committee identified a preferred vendor and began to develop an 
implementation plan there were several negatives identified with this approach that include:  

1) Simultaneous use of two meter reading systems which operate completely 
differently for both reading and utility billing purposes.  

2) Potential for cost increases for each year postpone implementation  
3) Simultaneous installation does not necessary equate to simultaneous replacement. 

Industry standard is to replace meters at 10 years or 1 million gallons. However, the 
City can decide to adjust that timeframe based on usage and accuracy.  

4) Both systems offer Municipal Lease Options and may be eligible for Kansas 
Revolving Loan to allow complete purchase 

 
After careful review of the positives and negatives for the implementation, the Selection 
Committee unanimously recommends an implementation plan that will convert all meters 
system-wide in shortest time possible within the budget constraints.  
 
Additionally, staff has researched the opportunity for outside financing available for this 
project. The most cost effective method of finance available for this project is use of the State 
of Kansas Revolving Loans dedicated to water projects. This program is very similar to the 
program used by the City of Edgerton for construction of Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment 
Facility and Conveyance System. State Revolving Loan Funds provide a very low interest rates 
to cities for investment in critical utility infrastructure.  
 
NEXT STEPS 
The Selection Committee will present the preferred vendor, Neptune, and the proposed AMI 
system to the Edgerton City Council on November 12th. Additionally, Neptune will attend City 
Council meeting to showcase the identified metering system.  
 
Staff would request City Council approve Neptune as the Preferred Vendor for the Automated 
Meter Reading Project (including the Advanced Metering Infrastructure as proposed). 
Additionally staff would request authorization to submit the project to Kansas Department of 
Health and Environment as a preferred project for consideration of Kansas State Revolving 
Loan Funds for 2016.   
 
Enclosure: Neptune Proposal 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 



Recommendation:  Approve Selection of Neptune as Preferred Vendor for Automated Meter 
Reading Project and Authorization Staff to Submit Automated Meter Reading Project to Kansas 

Department of Health and Environment as Requested Project for approximately $300,000 

 

Funding Source: None needed at this time. Request to submit project to selection as funded 
project by Kansas Department of Health and Environment for State Revolving Loan Funds 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: November 9, 2015 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Submittal of Application to Johnson County for Nelson Street Waterline 

Project for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for 2017 

 

Department:  Utilities 

 

Background/Description of Item: Each year Johnson County invites cities to submit 
application for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds made available by the 
federal government. Johnson County states that the primary goal of Johnson County's 
Community Development program is to provide federal financial assistance to eligible 
applicants for the purpose of community development. Toward this goal, the County has 
identified a number of strategies in its Consolidated Plan that eligible applicants are to consider 
in applying for CDBG funds. As stated in the 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, Johnson County’s 
priority needs are listed below.  

1. Non-housing Community Development 

 Public Facilities 
 Public Improvements 
 Infrastructure 
 Public Services 

 Economic Development 
2. Affordable Housing 
3. Homelessness 

  
During the work session held on May 19th, City Council identified the Nelson Street Waterline 
Replacement Project as a priority for completion. This project would be an eligible Public 
Facilities and Improvement project by definition for use of CDBG funds. Additionally, all of 
Edgerton is within a Census Block Group that qualifies for funding by area benefit.   
 
Cities who are interested in submitting a CDBG application to the County are required to obtain 
the views of citizens through at least one public hearing held before the city council and 
advertised at least fourteen (14) days in advance in the city’s newspaper of record. The public 
comment period begins on the day after publication. The City of Edgerton published a Public 
Hearing Notice in the Gardner News on May 11th. At time of preparation of the packet, the 
City has received no comments. The City will hold a Public Hearing on Thursday, May 26th 
prior to considering this item.  
 
CDBG is a reimbursement program in which cities may apply for up to $200,000. If Edgerton 
applies for $200,000 in 2017, Edgerton would be ineligible to apply for a grant in 2018. CDBG 
funds do not have a required match. However, the City is expected to provide leveraged funds 
in accordance with its financial capability. The application must contain verifiable statements 
indicating that the local leveraged funds represent the maximum amount available for the 
activity and that without the requested CDBG funds the activity could not be completed. 
However, those costs may be documented and used as local leveraged funds. 



In preparation for the CIP work session, City Engineer prepared the enclosed Engineer’s 
Estimate of Probable Project Costs. The total project cost is estimated at $291,495 which 
includes design, construction, inspection, etc. CDBG funds may only be used on construction.  
 
Staff would recommend using Water System Development Funds as leverage dollars for the 
$91,495 over the $200,000 allowed by CDBG. The final source of leverage funds will be 
determined by City Council if CDBG funding is awarded.  
 
Enclosure: Nelson Street Waterline Replacement Project CIP project sheet 
                Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Project Costs 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:  Approve Submittal of Application to Johnson County for Nelson Street 
Waterline Project for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for 2017 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: May 23, 2016 



Project Number: Funding Status: 

Dept: Project Status: 

Citizen Survey: 

Project Name: 

Project Description: 

Operations Impact: 

Estimated Cost:  $ 292,000 Outside Funding Available? Yes

Notes: 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Project Cost & Prior Budget Request Request Request Request Request

Design -$         -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        

Construction -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Construction Administration -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Utility Relocation -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Land Acquisition -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Other -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Total Cost -$         -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        

Project Financing

General Fund -$         -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        

Special Highway Fund -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Special Park & Rec Fund -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

PIF -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

CARS -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

KDOT -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Other Cities -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Grants -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

GO Bonds -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

City of Edgerton

Capital Improvement Plan

Unfunded

Water

4 - Water

Nelson Street Water Line Replacement

Replace approximately 2,100 linear feet of dutile pipe from E. 3rd St. to just west 

of W. 5th St. along Nelson.

In 1988, Nelson Street as we know it today, was constructed, and included new 

ductile iron watermain.  Since then, the main has started to corrode, and 

numerous leaks over the past few years have disrupted service to homes and to 

the school.  The replacement would use PVC pipe that will not corrode.  The 

main crosses 3 cross country pipelines which are historically known to cause 

electrolisis, which may or may not have a directly caused the current corroding.  

Prior to design of the project, an engineering report should be submitted to 

determine the corrosivity of the soil which could lessen the project scope.

 Would be eligible for CDBG funding.  City would have to fund a matching 

amount. 



Street Excise Tax -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Park Impact Fee -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

PIF Maintenance Fee -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

System Dev Fee - Water -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

System Dev Fee - Sewer -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Revolving Loan Fund -           -          -          -          -          -          -          

Total Funding Sources -$         -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        

Project Location: 

Picture, map, etc.



Item # Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Price

1. Mobilization 1 L.S. 20,000.00$          20,000.00$               

2. Contractor Construction Staking 1 L.S. 10,000.00$          10,000.00$               

3. Clearing and Grubbing 1 L.S. 5,000.00$            5,000.00$                  

4. Traffic Control 1 L.S. 15,000.00$          15,000.00$               

5. Temporary Erosion Control 1 L.S. 10,000.00$          10,000.00$               

6. Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching 1 L.S. 10,000.00$          10,000.00$               

7. 8" Waterline (PVC C900)(In-Place) 1,970 L.F. 40.00$                  78,800.00$               

8. 8" Waterline (HDD)(PVC C900)(RJ) 120 L.F. 75.00$                  9,000.00$                  

9. 8" M.J. Gate Valve 1 EA. 1,350.00$            1,350.00$                  

10. 8" Tapping Valve 3 EA. 2,000.00$            6,000.00$                  

11. Connect to Existing Waterline 3 EA. 1,500.00$            4,500.00$                  

12. Disconnect Existing Waterline 3 EA. 1,000.00$            3,000.00$                  

13. Connect to Existing Service 26 EA. 300.00$               7,800.00$                  

14. Relocate Existing Meter and Pit 0 EA. 500.00$               -$                            

15. Fire Hydrant Assembly 6 EA. 3,000.00$            18,000.00$               

16. Remove Existing Fire Hydrant 6 EA. 500.00$               3,000.00$                  

17. Tracer Wire 2,090 L.F. 0.50$                    1,045.00$                  

Construction Subtotal = 202,495.00$             

+10% Contingency = 20,200.00$               

Construction Total = 222,695.00$            

Design Engineering = 32,600.00$               

Construction Observation = 28,800.00$               

Construction Engineering = 7,400.00$                  

Total Opinion of Probable Costs = 291,495.00$            

Preparation Date:  April 21, 2016

8" Waterline on Nelson Street

City of Edgerton 16-1021L

Nelson Street Waterline Replacement

Engineer's Estimate of Probable Project Costs



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider an Agreement with Burns & McDonnell/CAS Construction On The Basis Of A 
Stipulated Price 

 

Department:  Utilities 

  

Background/Description of Item: In June 2014, the City of Edgerton received the Kansas Water 
Pollution Control Permit for the Edgerton Wastewater Treatment Facility (EWWTF). Section E of this permit 
(Schedule of Compliance) listed several requirements from the Kansas Department of Health and 
Environment (KDHE) including significantly more stringent nutrient removal requirements for plant 
effluent. Edgerton WWTF was constructed in 1981. Significant construction and upgrade would be required 
at EEWTF to meet the nutrient removal standards required by KDHE.  
 
In January 2015, city staff together with City Engineer presented to City Council an alternate plan to 
remove the existing EWWTF out of service by June 30, 2019 by installing a pump station and force main 
to transport the sewage to the Big Bull Creek Wastewater Treatment Facility (BBC WWTF). Edgerton City 
Council approved Resolution No. 01-22-15A in support of this concept. This alternate approach was 
approved by Kansas Department of Health and Environment (KDHE).  
 
In November 2015, Edgerton City Council approved a Preliminary Design-Build Agreement with Burns & 
McDonnell/CAS Construction in the amount of $200,800. The Preliminary Design-Build Agreement states 
the Contractor shall design the project to approximately 30% of the Project, which will enable the 
Contractor to determine a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for construction of the project.  
 
Please find enclosed the Executive Summary submitted by Burns & McDonnell/CAS Construction for 
consideration by City Council. The Executive Summary of the Work includes a description of the scope of 
work included in this agreement. It also includes the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of $2,787,950. A 
detailed item breakdown of this price proposal is included. Four items in the GMP are listed as allowances. 
These items the City is responsible for actual costs (either higher or lower than amount listed). 
 
This agreement does not include the contract amount for preliminary work ($200,800) to develop the 
GMP. Assuming the estimates for the allowance items are correct, total project expenses for design and 
construction would be $2,988,750. This amount does not include city engineer expenses or construction 
inspection costs. Staff would recommend using BG Consultants for inspection and anticipates bringing that 
contract for services for consideration by City Council at June 9th meeting.  
 
In February 2016, City Council approved a Charter Ordinance to exempt the City from state statute 
provisions regarding the issuance of bonds for the purpose of paying for sanitary sewer improvements. 
That Ordinance provides the City of Edgerton flexibility to use general obligation bonds for the construction 
of this project. Additionally, the City Council took the first step in that process by approving a resolution 
to authorize the offering for sale of general obligation bonds for this project. Following the closing of the 
60-day waiting period after publication of the Charter Ordinance, staff anticipates bringing the resolution 
to authorize the project and bonds to the July 14th City Council meeting together with approving the sale 
of the bonds that same meeting.  
 



City Attorney/City’s Insurance Representative have reviewed the design-build agreement and terms and 
conditions. City Attorney and D/B team are still negotiating final terms and conditions. Previous Agreement 
is available upon request from the City Clerk as the document over 100 pages. City Attorney will review 
updates for City Council during May 26, 2016 meeting. Additionally, City Engineer and Design-Build team 
will be present for questions.   
 
Enclosures: Executive Summary  

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:  Approve an Agreement with Burns & McDonnell/CAS Construction On the Basis Of 
A Stipulated Price with Guaranteed Maximum Price at $2,787,950. 

 

Funding Source: General Obligation Bonds Series 2016 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: May 23, 2016 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

May 23, 2016 

City of Edgerton, KS  Pump Station and Force Main Work- 

Price - $2,787,950.00 
 
Executive summary of work - 

• 100% Performance and payment bonds  
• GL, UL, PL and builders risk insurance included 
• Prevailing wages are not required for this contract. 
• Sales tax exemption certificate to be provided by City.   
• Phase 1 services is a separate agreement will be billed separately and is not included in this price 
• Includes all labor, materials, equipment and supervision to complete the scope of the work 
• Includes all design and construction administration fees for the work 
• Trees along force main route will be cleared prior to June1 as a part of the Phase 1 services 

agreement 
• Relocation of existing salt/sand storage building 
• New wetwell and drywell areas to be fenced and secured 
• Manholes and piping necessary to direct flow to the new wetwell before the existing plant. 
• New wetwell and drywell structures.   
• Mechanical basket screen system to remove trash from wetwell prior to pumping 
• Wetwell submersible pumps in series with drywell pumps connecting to new force main. 
• Both wetwell and drywell will be ready for installation of third set of pumps when need dictates.  
• Includes approximately 13,200lf of HDPE force main, directional drilling of the creek crossing, air 

release valves/vaults, pipeline cleanouts, pressure regulating valve and tie into existing manhole 
for routing to Big Bull Creek WWTP. 

• Site and force main route will be clean, fine graded and seeded upon completion.  

 

Price Breakdown 

Item Cost 
General conditions/ construction equipment/Insurances & Bonds $317,942. 
Site excavation/backfill/yard piping $81,767. 
Wetwell / Drywell / manhole structures  $131,578. 
Site fencing / paving / relocate ex. storage building $138,364. 
Hoisting $20,410. 
Force main & appurtenances $803,576 
Allowances  (detailed below) $222,775. 
Screenings  $120,855. 
Pumps / pipe / valves $199,375. 
HVAC $25,672. 
Electrical/instrumentation/controls $460,636. 
Design and Construction Administration $265,000. 
  
Total Contract Value $2,787,950. 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 

• Allowances are items that are covered in the lump sum total contract value for the specific 
budget of the item detailed. Costs for these items (labor, material, equipment and 
subcontractors) will be tracked at cost with no markup for overhead and profit.  In the event 
that the costs are in excess of the amounts listed, the Owner shall pay such additional cost. In 
the event that the costs are less than the amounts listed, the Owner shall be entitled to the 
amounts remaining. Allowances included in the lump sum price above  - 

 Linework – stump removal   $10,000. 
 Concrete blocks at salt/sand storage $2,000. 
 Existing Plant Decommissioning  $74,000. 
 HDD Bull Creek & Quarry Drive   $136,775. 


	Agenda 05-26-2016
	Minutes 05-12-2016
	Ordinance No. 1016 KS Gas Franchise
	Purchase Materials for AMR Project
	Submittal of Nelson Street Waterline Project for 2017 CDBG
	Agreement and GMP for EWWTP Project

